1989

Jeanette Osguthorpe v. Jerry Osguthorpe : Brief of Appellant

Utah Court of Appeals

JURISDICTION

Jurisdiction to consider this appeal is vested in the Utah Court of Appeals pursuant to R. Utah Ct. App. 3 and 4, and Utah Code Ann. § 78-2a-3(2)(h) (1989).

NATURE OF PROCEEDINGS

This is an appeal from certain provisions of the Findings of Fact and Decree of Divorce executed and entered March 1, 1989, in the Third Judicial District Court for Salt Lake County, State of Utah, the Honorable Homer F. Wilkinson presiding, which terminated the marriage of the parties, in particular, those provisions which set an amount to be paid as child support; those provisions which awarded and set an amount as alimony; those provisions which divided the real property of the parties; and those provisions which awarded attorney fees to

the respondent.

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

I.

THE TRIAL COURT UNFAIRLY DIVIDED THE INCOME OF THE PARTIES AND AWARDED EXCESSIVE AMOUNTS AS ALIMONY AND CHILD SUPPORT, LEAVING THE APPELLANT INSUFFICIENT INCOME ON WHICH TO SUPPORT HIMSELF.

- A. The alimony and child support awards are based upon erroneous Findings of Fact.
- B. The trial court has inequitably allocated the parties' financial and material resources.

II.

THE RESPONDENT IS CAPABLE OF SELF-SUPPORT AND THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN AWARDING HER ALIMONY.

III.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO AWARD TO THE APPELLANT GIFTS GIVEN TO HIM BY HIS FATHER DURING THE COURSE OF THE MARRIAGE, WHILE RETURNING TO THE RESPONDENT PROPERTY WHICH SHE OWNED PRIOR TO THE MARRIAGE OF THE PARTIES.

IV.

THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ORDERING THE APPELLANT TO PAY ANY OF THE ATTORNEY'S FEES OF THE RESPONDENT, WHERE THE RESPONDENT FAILED TO MAKE A RECORD OF REASONABLENESS AND NEED AND WHERE THE TRIAL COURT AWARDED RESPONDENT THE MAJORITY OF THE PROPERTY AND INCOME OF THE PARTIES.

- A. Respondent failed to establish the reasonableness of her costs and attorney fees.
- B. Respondent failed to establish a need for an award of her costs and attorney fees.

DETERMINATIVE AUTHORITY

The following statutes are relevant to this case:

30-3-5. Disposition of property -
Maintenance and health care of
parties and children - Court to have
continuing jurisdiction - Custody
and visitation - Termination of
alimony - Nonmeritorious petition
for modification.

(1) When a decree of divorce is
rendered, the court may include in
it equitable orders relating to the
children, property, and parties.
The court shall include the
following in every decree of
divorce:

(a) An order assigning
responsibility for the payment
of reasonable and necessary
medical and dental expenses of
the dependent children; and

(b) If coverage is available
at a reasonable cost, an order
requiring the purchase and
maintenance of appropriate
health, hospital, and dental
care insurance for the
dependent children.

(2) The court may include, in an
order determining child support, an
order assigning financial
responsibility for all or a portion
of child care expenses incurred on
behalf of the dependent children,
necessitated by the employment or
training of the custodial parent.
If the court determines that the
circumstances are appropriate and
that the dependent children would
be adequately cared for, it may
include an order allowing the non-
custodial parent to provide the day

care for the dependent children, necessitated by the employment or training of the custodial parent.

(3) The court has continuing jurisdiction to make subsequent changes or new orders for the support and maintenance of the parties, the custody of the children and their support, maintenance, health, and dental care, or the distribution of the property as is reasonable and necessary.

Utah Code Ann. § 30-3-5(1)-(3) (1989).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The parties were married on August 26, 1974 (Transcript, hereinafter "T," at 33), and separated on January 7, 1988 (T.33, 308). Four children were born as issue of this marriage, ranging in age from 8 to 12 (T.33). Although the parties were married while the appellant was in veterinary school, his education was financed by appellant's father (T.90, 187, 280). After graduation in 1977 (T.99), appellant commenced employment as a consultant to his father's veterinary clinic, which employment continued to the present. (T. 99-100). Appellant is an independent contractor in his working relationship with his father and is paid \$2,000.00 per month for his services (T. 80, 92, 102, 125, 158, 260, 267-68, 287, 329). From that compensation, he must pay his own business expenses (T.222-23), but he receives no employee benefits (T.102,267). During the marriage, appellant was given the payments from a barn rental in Park City, Utah, of

\$350.00 per month, as a gift from his father (T.92-94, 160, 166, 329).

The appellant testified that he was thirty-seven years old at the time of trial (T.99). He further testified that he incurs \$154.89 a month for taxes and incurs business expenses of \$1,001.31 per month, leaving him with a net monthly income, including the barn rental gift, as long as it continues, of \$1,192.00 per month (T.92, 179). He had actual and anticipated living expenses of \$2,049.60 per month (Defendant's Exhibit 36).

The respondent was thirty-five years old at the time of trial and in good health (T.31-32, 86, 89). Despite an eye injury received prior to the marriage (T.32), she was an avid tennis player (T.86), and was able to assist her husband in maintenance of the parties' home and on the farm owned by appellant's father (T.42, 89-90, 185-86, 236-37, 306-07). She graduated from the University of Utah in 1975 with a Bachelor of Science Degree (T.35) and was two hours away from receiving a current teaching certificate (T.36, 87). She intended to secure a teaching position as soon as possible (T. 39).

Respondent had rental income in the sum of \$500.00 and expenses of \$340.00 per month against that rental, giving her a net rental income of \$160.00 per month (T.44). She was employed as an insurance claims processor with a net monthly wage of \$770.00 per month (T.31, 83, 86, 182). The court determined that she had living expenses of \$2,027.00 per

month (Findings of Fact, paragraph 6 at 4).

At trial, respondent sought \$175.00 per child per month as child support (T. 51). Respondent also sought alimony in the sum of \$250.00 per month, terminable upon her death, remarriage or cohabitation (T. 51). Appellant testified that the sum of \$125.00 per child per month was reasonable as child support (T. 136), and requested that child support be abated by fifty percent during extended visitation (T. 204). He testified that he believed that respondent should not be entitled to alimony because of her earning ability (T. 136, 195, 237-38).

The trial court ordered the appellant to pay child support of \$150.00 per month for each of the four minor children of the parties (T. 347), a total sum of \$600.00 per month. The appellant was also ordered to pay the respondent \$150.00 per month as alimony for five (5) years, at the end of which time alimony would reduce to \$1.00 a year for five (5) additional years, then terminate (T. 350). The total sum of alimony and child support awarded to respondent was \$750.00 per month. The court indicated that it believed that the appellant had more income than he was demonstrating, although the court did not know how much (T. 350).

The respondent had a home on Hillrise Circle which she owned before the marriage of the parties (T. 45, 56, 59, 135). During the marriage, the parties lived there and improved the home (T. 43, 89-90, 123, 184-85, 235-36, 352), then, bought a

home on Chris Lane (T.66). A real estate appraiser whose qualification was stipulated, testified that, in his opinion, the fair market value of the Hillrise home in August, 1974, was \$34,000.00 (T. 207, 209), and was \$61,500.00 in May, 1988 (T.210). He also testified that improvements made during the marriage by the parties on the Hillrise home would have enhanced the value of the home (T.218).

The father of the appellant gave the appellant a number of cash gifts during different years throughout the marriage (T. 90-91, 125-26, 168, 186-87, 194, 225-27, 239, 286, 357). The appellant's father made available a loan in the sum of \$18,500.00 which provided the downpayment on the Chris Lane home; later, Dr. Osguthorpe, Sr., paid off that obligation as a gift to his son (T. 67-70, 191-193, 281-85).

The trial court found that the Hillrise Circle home was the respondent's premarital property and awarded all interest in it to her (T. 352), despite the testimony concerning appellant's contributions to that property. The court found that the Chris Lane home was joint property, despite the testimony of the appellant's father that he had given gifts to just the appellant which the appellant put into the home (T. 195, 225-27, 280-82), and the equity of approximately \$43,000.00 was divided between the parties (T.72, 353). Other than the mortgages on the Hillrise Circle and Chris Lane homes, the parties had no debts (T. 178).

Respondent sought attorney's fees in this matter. Her

attorney proffered, following the close of the first day of a two-day trial, that he concentrated his practice in domestic relations law (T. 241). He also proffered that he believed his hourly rate of \$100.00 per hour was reasonable and offered to make available to the trial court his time records (T. 242). The estimated total of costs and attorney's fees incurred by respondent was \$7,869.30 (T. 311). Appellant did not agree that he should be responsible for those fees or that the amounts proffered were reasonable (T. 44-45, 312). The court awarded respondent \$3,939.65 of an estimated \$7,800.00 in attorney fees incurred by her and ordered the appellant to pay them (T. 241-245, 311, 359).

Appellant challenged the findings and decision of the trial court on February 28, 1989. The court affirmed its decision (T. of February 28th hearing at 2-14). Appellant also timely moved for relief from judgment, or, in the alternative, for a new trial which was denied by the trial court. The appellant pursues this appeal, challenging the trial court's findings and asserts that the trial court has not fairly and equitably divided the income and property of the parties.

STANDARD OF REVIEW

Trial courts have considerable discretion in adjusting the financial and property interests of parties in a divorce, and the decision of the trial court is presumed valid. Ruhsam v. Ruhsam, 742 P.2d 123, 124 (Utah App. 1987). This

presumption is overcome where appellant shows that the trial court misunderstood or misapplied the law resulting in substantial and prejudicial error; or that the evidence clearly preponderated against the findings; or that such a serious inequity results so as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion. Id. In determining whether an error has been made by the trial court, the appellate court may review both the facts and the law. Wiese v. Wiese, 699 P.2d 700, 701 (Utah 1985).

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

On appeal, appellant challenges certain Finding of Fact by the trial court as being clearly erroneous in light of the evidence presented and the trial court's adjudication as to the financial affairs and properties of the parties is so inequitable that it manifests an abuse of discretion which should be corrected.

Specifically, appellant argues that the trial court misapplied Utah law regarding the equitable distribution of property acquired by one spouse as a gift from his father during the course of the marriage and the distribution of the enhanced value of premarital assets. These were unfairly distributed based upon erroneous Findings and Conclusions and the court failed to enter sufficient Findings of Fact with respect to respondent's need for, and reasonableness of, costs and attorney's fees.

ARGUMENT

I.

THE TRIAL COURT UNFAIRLY DIVIDED THE INCOME OF THE PARTIES AND AWARDED EXCESSIVE AMOUNTS AS ALIMONY AND CHILD SUPPORT, LEAVING THE APPELLANT INSUFFICIENT INCOME ON WHICH TO SUPPORT HIMSELF.

A. THE ALIMONY AND CHILD SUPPORT AWARD ARE BASED UPON ERRONEOUS FINDINGS OF FACT.

After conclusion of the trial in this matter, the trial court ordered appellant to pay to the respondent the sum of \$150.00 per month as and for alimony for a period of five years. At the end of five years, the alimony award was reduced to the sum of \$1.00 per year for an additional five-year period until such time as the respondent remarries, cohabits or dies. (Decree of Divorce, paragraph 7, at 4). The trial court also ordered appellant to pay to respondent the sum of \$150.00 per month as child support for each of the four minor children of the parties until each child reaches the age of eighteen or graduates from high school in his normal year of graduation, whichever occurs last. (Decree of Divorce, paragraph 6 at 4). The total sum of alimony and child support awarded to respondent was \$750.00 per month. This award left the appellant with a net income of \$442.00 per month on which to support himself.

The award to respondent of the sum of \$750.00 per month

as alimony and child support was based upon the trial court's Finding that, "[T]he Defendant receives more money by way of monthly income than was reflected on Defendant's Exhibit 36" (Findings of Fact, paragraph 6, at 5). The trial court indicated that it believed the appellant had more income than he was demonstrating, although the court did not know how much (T.350). Appellant challenged the Findings of Fact and Conclusions of Law of the trial court on February 28, 1989, but the decision was affirmed. (T. of February 28th hearing at 2-14).

On appeal, the Findings of Fact, "shall not be set aside unless clearly erroneous, and due regard shall be given to the opportunity of the trial court to judge the credibility of the witnesses." Utah R. Civ. P. 52(a) (1989). The appellate court will overturn a factual resolution by the trial court if the appellant "marshals all the evidence supporting the trial court's finding and demonstrates that that evidence, when compared to the contrary evidence, is so lacking as to warrant the conclusion that a clear error has been committed." Newmeyer v. Newmeyer, 745 P.2d 1276, 1278 (Utah 1987). Likewise, the trial court's decision will be overturned if its Findings of Fact are not sufficiently detailed as to all factors contained in the statute for determination of the amount of support, Jeffries v. Jeffries, 752 P.2d 909, 911 (Utah App. 1988), unless "the facts in the record are clear, uncontroverted, and capable of

supporting only a finding in favor of the judgment." Anderson v. Anderson, 757 P.2d 476, 478 (Utah App. 1988).

The trial court made two substantial errors in entering its Findings of Fact upon which alimony and child support in this case were based. First, the trial court's finding as to appellant's income was clearly erroneous in light of the evidence presented. Second, the findings upon which alimony and child support were based do not sufficiently disclose whether the trial court took into account the crucial factors in setting that award. With regard to the first error, the trial court stated in rendering its decision:

Again, Mr. Kasting did bring out the situation as far as the amount of money that was left there as far as to support the family on, which was just not reasonable. So there is no question that there is more money in the home than the tax reports show as far as the amount of net income. I am not in the position to go through and to make a definite finding as to just what amount is present there. I know what the tax return says. I know what is taken off as far as -- and I looked them over -- as far as business expenses and so forth.

Well, that's between these two parties and the IRS, and that's what takes place. Therefore, I have nothing to say concerning that except they did have more money in the home to operate on. But I don't know how much. (T. at 349-350).

The only reasonable conclusion for the trial court to make given the evidence presented was that appellant had a gross income of approximately \$2,350.00 per month as long as

the barn rental gift continued. Trial of this case extended over two days, and the record is replete with evidence that bears upon the income issue and that supports that conclusion. The appellant testified that he was thirty-seven years old at the time of trial (T. 99), and that he worked as an independent contractor to his father's veterinary clinic earning \$2,000.00 per month (T. 80, 92, 102, 125, 158, 260, 267-68, 287, 329). From that, he must pay his own business expenses (T. 222-23), leaving him with a net monthly income, including \$350.00 per month from the barn rental, of \$1,192.00 per month (T. 92, 179).

During trial, respondent introduced the parties' tax return, arguing that appellant's total monthly income was actually \$2,350.00. But respondent also testified at trial that she prepared the parties' tax returns and that her husband grosses about \$2,000.00 a month, and has a net income of slightly over \$1,000.00 per month (T. at 92, 302).

The trial court's conclusion that appellant earned more than \$2,000.00 per month appears to be based upon a belief that the appellant should be earning a greater sum of money than the evidence reflected since appellant is in the veterinary profession (T. 348). Yet, the Utah Supreme Court has affirmed a trial court award of a nominal sum of child support based upon evidence that reflected an unusually low income. See, e.g., Jorgensen v. Jorgensen, 667 P.2d 22, 23 (Utah 1983).

The problem is compounded by the fact that since the trial court entered no finding as to appellant's income, the court failed to provide a baseline for modification purposes. See, e.g., Johnson v. Johnson, 771 P.2d 696, 699-700 (Utah App. 1989). In this case, the trial court should have based its findings on the evidence rather than speculating as to the doctor's income and making an award of alimony and child support based upon that speculation.

In the absence of any evidence contrary to appellant's testimony as to his earnings, any other conclusion as to the amount of appellant's earnings is merely conjecture. "Notwithstanding the equitable powers of the district court in interfamilial controversies in divorce matters, and the acknowledged broad latitude of discretion allowed therein, the court cannot act arbitrarily, or on supposition or conjecture as to facts upon which to justify its order." Iverson v. Iverson, 526 P.2d 1126, 1127 (Utah 1974). Similarly, the Utah Supreme Court has stated in King v. King, 478 P.2d 492, 495-496 (Utah 1970) that, "[w]e remain aware of the prerogatives and the broad discretion accorded the trial court in matters of divorce. Nevertheless, this certainly does not extend to an arbitrary and unreasoning power to disregard credible, uncontradicted evidence and make findings inconsistent therewith and issue an order based thereon."

Secondly, the trial court failed to enter findings of fact sufficiently detailed as to the statutory factors

considered in determining the level of alimony and child support awarded to respondent. The trial court's failure to consider the statutory factors set forth in Utah Code Ann. § 78-45-7 (3) (1989) for child support is an abuse of discretion. See Jeffries, 752 P.2d at 911. Likewise, in setting the level of alimony the court must consider, "the financial condition and needs of the spouse claiming support, the ability of that spouse to provide sufficient income for him or herself, and the ability of the responding spouse to provide this support." Stevens v. Stevens, 754 P.2d 952, 958 (Utah App. 1988).

In Stevens, the trial court decision relating to alimony and child support was reversed by the court of appeals because the trial court made only limited, conclusory findings of fact regarding alimony and child support. 754 P.2d at 958. The court of appeals found that the trial court had failed to address the financial conditions, needs and abilities of each spouse. Id. at 958. Furthermore, the trial court had failed to make explicit findings regarding the statutory factors pertinent to a child support determination. Id.

In this case, the parties disputed the amount of appellant's income. The trial court found that with respect to alimony, "the defendant receives more money by way of monthly income than was reflected on defendant's Exhibit 36." (Findings of Fact, paragraph 6 at 5). The trial court rejected appellant's evidence as to income but did not

specifically determine the ability of appellant to provide support as required by Utah law.

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