1989

Jeanette Osguthorpe v. Jerry Osguthorpe : Brief of Respondent

Utah Court of Appeals

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

SUMMARY OF ARGUMENTS

Point I:

Under Utah law, a trial court in a divorce action is afforded a wide latitude of discretion in fashioning a remedy which will fit the needs of the parties and the parties' children. Decisions which fall within that ambit of discretion will not be disturbed unless the Appellant is able to demonstrate that the trial court misunderstood or misapplied the law or found facts not supported by the evidence. In this case, the Appellant has failed in his burden to demonstrate any error on the part of the trial court in connection with any issue raised in Appellant's Brief.

Point II:

Under Utah law, if a witness testifies falsely in one respect, the finder of fact is entitled to disregard all or any portion of that witness's testimony if it elects to do so. In this case, the trial court properly noted inconsistencies in Dr. Osguthorpe's testimony. As such, the trial court was within its right to not consider any of Dr. Osguthorpe's evidence if it chose not to.

Point III:

The trial court's awards of alimony and child support were appropriate and at best minimal. Each award was based on substantial credible evidence related to the Respondent's need for support and her ability to provide support for herself and the children. Each of the findings which the trial court made were supported by substantial amounts of evidence presented by both Respondent and Appellant and independent witnesses. Appellant has not demonstrated any fatal defects related to those findings.

The trial court properly found that either Dr. Osguthorpe understated his income or underemployed himself. In either event, the trial court was justified in fashioning the overall support award and property distribution which it did and Dr. Osguthorpe has shown no error which would in any way justify a reversal.

Point IV:

The trial court properly considered the factors it was required to consider in making an award of alimony to Mrs. Osguthorpe. It considered the length of the marriage, the financial needs of Mrs. Osguthorpe, and the abilities of both Mrs. Osguthorpe and Dr. Osguthorpe to provide support. If anything, the trial court erred by making Mrs. Osguthorpe's award of alimony not permanent.

Point V:

The evidence which was presented to the trial court regarding gifts made during the marriage by the Appellant's father were made to both parties. The trial court was not obligated to conclude that those gifts were made solely to Dr. Osguthorpe simply because

he and his father said so. The trial court was allowed to look at other independent evidence in making a determination of intent and that other independent evidence reflected that all such gifts made by Dr. Osguthorpe Sr. were made to both of the parties except the one which was made after the parties' separation. The trial court committed no error in concluding that Dr. Osguthorpe should not receive any credit for any such gifts.

Point VI

The trial court committed no error in not awarding interest on the lien it gave to Dr. Osguthorpe in the marital residence. Given the unusually low level of child support and alimony awarded by the trial court and the absence of any significant marital property, imposition of any interest rate on such lien would have been unduly burdensome and totally unfair to Mrs. Osguthorpe.

Point VII :

The trial court committed no error in awarding Mrs. Osguthorpe only one-half of the attorney's fees she requested. There was substantial and significant evidence presented relative to the requirements for an award of attorney's fees as set out under Utah law as well as additional substantial evidence relative to Mrs. Osguthorpe's need to have those fees paid. Again, if anything, the trial court erred in not awarding Mrs. Osguthorpe all of the fees she requested.

Point VIII:

Each of the issues raised by Dr. Osguthorpe in connection with this appeal is without merit. Mrs. Osguthorpe has limited

financial means and has difficulty supporting herself and her children, let alone attempting to pay for the services of attorney's in connection with the defending of this appeal. Equity and fairness require that she not be required to pay her fees incurred in connection with this appeal. Because this appeal is totally without merit, Dr. Osguthorpe should be required to pay all of the attorney's fees and costs incurred by Mrs. Osguthorpe in defending this appeal.

ARGUMENT

POINT I

THE DECISION OF A TRIAL COURT IN A
DIVORCE ACTION SHOULD NOT BE
DISTURBED UNLESS THERE IS A CLEAR
SHOWING OF A MISAPPLICATION OF THE
LAW OR AN ABUSE OF DISCRETION
RESULTING IN A SUBSTANTIAL ERROR OR
A SERIOUS INEQUITY

The Appellant, Dr. Osguthorpe, contends that the trial court erred in its awards of child support, alimony, and attorney's fees and in inequitably allocating marital property, and in the handling of gifts given to the parties and, consequently, abused the wide discretion afforded it in making such order. The evidence presented to the trial court clearly shows that this was just not the case.

In order to prevail on this appeal, Dr. Osguthorpe is required to show that the trial court, in making its award of support or distribution of property, misunderstood or misapplied the law, entered findings not supported by the evidence, or caused a serious inequity so as to constitute an abuse of discretion. See English

v. English, 565 P.2d 409, 410 (Utah, 1977). As was clearly stated in Searle v. Searle, 522 P.2d 697 (Utah 1974):

Although it is both the duty and prerogative of this court in a case of equity to review the facts as well as the law, Article 8, Section 9, Constitution of Utah. The trial judge has considerable latitude of discretion in adjusting the financial and property interests in a divorce case. The actions of the trial court are indulged with the presumption of validity, and the burden is on appellant to prove such a serious inequity as to manifest a clear abuse of discretion [footnote]. There is no fixed formula for the division of property; Section 30-3-5 U.C.A. (1953) provides that when a decree of divorce is made the court may make such orders in relation to property as may be equitable. [footnote] Id. at 700.

Dr. Osguthorpe's burden is not an easy one and the record does not show any inequity which would constitute an abuse of discretion by the trial court. As was stated in Bader v. Bader, 18 Utah 2d 407, 424 P.2d 190 (1967):

It would lead to intolerable instability of judgments if this court should assume the prerogative and accept the responsibility of merely second guessing a trial judge who has done a conscientious job of attempting to make just and equitable allocation of the property and income of the parties in regard to alimony and support monies as the trial judge appears to have done here. It is due to this fact, taking into consideration the nature of the trial judge's authority and duty, and his advantaged position, that in such matters he is allowed a comparatively wide latitude of discretion which will not be disturbed in the absence of clear abuse . . . Id. at 151.

After a complete trial and the receipt of comprehensive exhibits, the trial judge properly weighed all of the factors related to this case and fashioned a remedy that would be as fair

as possible to both parties under the circumstances.

Because Dr. Osguthorpe now appears to be dissatisfied with all aspects of the trial court's decision, he has now requested this Court to substitute its judgment for that of the trial court. That request is an invasion of the trial court's function as the fact finder and fashioner of equitable remedies.

As a preliminary matter, it is necessary to set the record straight regarding claims of Appellant that the trial court did not properly consider the evidence which was presented at trial. Evidence was presented by both sides (documents and testimony) pertaining to capacities to earn, historical income, contributions to the marriage and the professional development of Dr. Osguthorpe as well as the property acquired during the marriage and the sources from which it came. The trial court in reaching its final decision, considered all of the evidence presented to it in determining what, indeed, was fact.

It is not a proper approach, as Appellant would urge, to conclude that merely because his evidence was offered with regard to income, expenses, earnings and sources of property, that that evidence need automatically be taken as fact. It is the job of the trial court, after receiving all of that evidence, to carefully weigh the same and conclude, based upon that evidence, what the facts of the case are. That is exactly the procedure used by the trial court in this case and certainly should not be subject to attack, as Appellant has attempted to do in his Brief.

The basic flaw in Mr. Osguthorpe's approach is that he has not

shown that there has been any misapplication of the law or any abuse of discretion which resulted in any inequity to him. Rather, he complains now that the trial court found facts different from the facts Dr. Osguthorpe wanted the trial court to find in making its award of support, attorney's fees and property distribution.

When there is a discrepancy in testimony rendered by the witnesses, the fact-finder must decide which account is the most accurate. Then on appeal, we must review the facts in the light most favorable to the prevailing party. Lamkin v. Lynch, 600 P.2d 530 (Utah, 1979).

The question then becomes: "Was there credible evidence presented to the trial court to allow it to do what it did?" The answer to that question is "yes." Therefore, Dr. Osguthorpe has not in any sense met his burden on appeal and, therefore, the judgment of the trial court should be affirmed in all respects.

POINT II

IT WAS WITHIN THE PREROGATIVE OF THE
TRIAL COURT TO DISREGARD ALL OF DR.
OSGUTHORPE'S TESTIMONY IF IT CHOSE
TO DO SO

Deciding whether a witness is believable, and determining what weight to assign a witnesses testimony, are matters within the discretion of the finder of fact. Lemon v. Gates, 735 P.20 58 (Utah 1987).

When a witness testifies falsely, it is within the prerogative of the finder of fact to disregard any portion or all of the witness' testimony if it chooses to do so. Gittens v. Lundberg, 284 P.2d 1115, 3 Utah 2d 392 (1955).

During the trial of this case, Dr. Osguthorpe's credibility was successfully challenged on more than a number of occasions and that lack of credibility was specifically noted by the Court when it stated:

The Court also did note that there was a number of inconsistencies as far as the testimony of the defendant. Of course counsel pointed one out, which the Court did not note this morning, and there were other inconsistencies between his testimony now and the testimony of what - - that he gave at the time of the deposition. Of course his explanation was that he didn't understand the question. Maybe he did and by he didn't. I don't know. But I know there were inconsistencies of course of which the Court did note and the Court must take any consideration in looking at the overall testimony and the believability and the credibility and the testimony of the parties."
(R-343)

This Court should be aware of those inconsistencies in testimony when considering the issues Dr. Osguthorpe now attempts to raise on appeal.

When asked in his deposition as to whether or not Jeannette has assisted him through veterinarian school, he said she had. At trial, he said she didn't. (TR 124, 127)

When asked about his relationship with Osguthorpe Animal Hospital he said he was not an employee and only a "consultant" to his father, the only veterinarian in the hospital (R-106). When confronted with the yellow page ad for the hospital (Ex. P-22 & P-23, See Addendum) showing him to be a veterinarian in the hospital with a phone listing for the Chris Lane residence he said it was there only so that he could take messages for his father (TR 111).

When asked about ownership of his 1979 truck he stated that the hospital owned it. (TR 114) He was then shown the vehicle registration reflecting him to be the owner (Ex. P-24, See Addendum). And when that truck was traded after separation for a brand new 1988 truck he said the hospital owned the new truck (TR 116) and was unable to explain why he signed the affidavit of ownership and why his name was again reflected as the record owner (TR 116-118 and Ex. P-25, See Addendum). After the luncheon recess, he explained he only held legal title and the hospital was the equitable owner (R. 171).

He said he paid for all gas, taxes and insurance on the truck (TR 143 and Ex. 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5) and did not seek reimbursement from his father whereas his father who had not heard that testimony testified that the hospital paid those expenses (TR 266-267) and his returns also reflected otherwise. (Ex. 1, 2, 3, 4 & 5)

He said he hadn't paid his parents any rent while living with them after separation whereas in his deposition he said he had paid rent for the period in question (TR 228-230).

He said his "consulting fee" from his father had gone up dramatically from about \$500 to \$2,000.00 a month during his 10 years of practice (TR 188) whereas his father said he had been paid \$2,000.00 from the start (TR 268).

The above inconsistencies when considered in conjunction with his testimony about his income as was reflected on his tax returns less the deductions he had taken and the resulting net income figures (TR 144-160) (See Point III of this Brief), provided a more

than sufficient basis for Judge Wilkinson to question the truthfulness and the motives of Dr. Osguthorpe.

Those motives clearly became apparent from the following testimony of Mr. Lynn Turnbow, a neighbor of the parties about a conversation he had with Dr. Osguthorpe while this action was pending.

MR. TURNBOW:

A Well, what I remember, he says that she really hasn't got a pot to piss in. And he says, my parents have a lot of money. And he says, I have a checking account. And my family can go out and hire the best lawyers. And he says that she is going to end up with nothing. And he says, The amount of money that I show I make is just not enough that she's even going to be able to survive with four kids, and she's going to be out on the street with nothing. She going to starve.

MR. KASTING:

Q. Is there anything else that you can recall about that conversation as it pertains to this divorce action that Mr. Osguthorpe said to you?

MR. TURNBOW:

A. He just told me that she would be out on the streets with nothing. And he said, She's going to have one hell of a time raising four kids. Because he said, We have the money that we can drag this on. We can fight it forever. He said, Her parents have no money to help her. And he said that the only way she can hire a lawyer is to go take a second mortgage on a second house that they have, I guess. (R. 318-320)

Simply put, given the evidence cited above, any or all of Dr. Osguthorpe's testimony could have been, should have been, and probably was disregarded by the trial court.

POINT III

THE TRIAL COURT'S AWARDS OF ALIMONY WERE APPROPRIATE, SUPPORTED BY THE EVIDENCE, AND CONSISTENT WITH UTAH LAW

Point I of Appellant's Brief is disjointed and confusing as to what errors are claimed to have been committed, but perhaps it can be synthesized into two simple questions:

1. Were the Findings adequately supported by the evidence?
2. Was there evidence to show that Dr. Osguthorpe was earning more than he testified to or, in the alternative, Was there evidence to show that Dr. Osguthorpe was earning less than he was capable of earning?

A.

The Findings of Fact Were Adequately Supported by the Evidence and not Erroneous

To demonstrate the lack of merit to this portion of Dr. Osguthorpe's argument, this Court's attention is called to the following statement on page 14 of Appellant's Brief:

The problem is compounded by the fact that since the trial court entered no finding as to appellant's income, the court failed to provide a baseline for modification purposes. Id.

The trial court certainly did enter a finding as to the Defendant's income as is reflected below:

The Defendant testified that he received \$2,000.00 per month from his employment as a doctor of veterinarian medicine and an additional \$350.00 per month from barn rental on a barn in Park City, which he testified was a gift from his father, for a total monthly income, according to his testimony of \$2,350.00. He further testified he had income taxes of \$154.89 and business expenses of \$1,002.31, leaving him total monthly deductions of \$1,157.20 and a net monthly income of

\$1,192.80, as was reflected on the information contained on Defendant's Exhibit 31. The Defendant further testified that he had estimated actual and anticipated monthly expenses of \$2,049.60, as reflected on Defendant's Exhibit 36. The Court considered each parties' testimony, the Exhibits referred to above and the tax returns filed by the parties and accepted into evidence (Plaintiff's Exhibits 1 through 6), all of which were admitted as evidence.

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